

2020-21 Financial and Performance Outcomes General Questionnaire

Monash Health

Monash Health

Contents

Contents	3
Introduction – Financial and Performance Outcomes Questionnaire	2
Section A: Output variances and program outcomes	3
Section B: Asset investment	14
Section C: Revenue and appropriations	19
Section D: Expenses	23
Section E: Overall financial performance	29
Section F: Public sector workforce	30
Section G: Government decisions impacting on finances	33
Section H: General	35
Section I: Implementation of previous recommendations	40
Section J: Department of Treasury and Finance only	41
Section K: Treasury Corporation of Victoria ONLY	49

Introduction – Financial and Performance Outcomes Questionnaire

The Committee's inquiry into the 2020-21 Financial and Performance Outcomes examines:

- the Government's actual expenditure and revenue compared to the budgeted expenditure and revenue
- the actual performance outcomes against the targeted performance outcomes at a departmental/agency level
- other expenditure unforeseen at the time of preparing the 2020-21 Budget and outcomes achieved.

The inquiry aims to benefit the Parliament and the community by:

- promoting the accountability, transparency and integrity of the executive and the public sector
- encouraging the effective and efficient delivery of public services and assets.

This questionnaire seeks information on the departmental/agency financials for the 2020-21 financial year, what was achieved during those years and how that compares to expectations.

Timeline and format

Responses to this questionnaire are due by 5.00pm on Friday 29 October 2021.

Please email the completed questionnaire (in word and pdf) to paec@parliament.vic.gov.au

Please also email a signed copy.

Consistency with the budget papers

Wherever referring to an initiative/program/project that is referred to in the budget papers, please use the same name as is used in the budget papers. This ensures that the Committee can correlate the information provided by the department with the information in the budget papers.

Basis of consolidation

For departments, please use the same basis of consolidation as was used in the budget papers and in the budget portfolio outcomes statement in the department's annual report.

Guidance

Please contact the secretariat should you require guidance in relation to any questions:

Janithri Wickramaratne, Lead Analyst Ph 8682 2996 Alanna Symons, Analyst Ph 8682 2987 Charlotte Lever, Research Assistant Ph 8682 2872

Section A: Output variances and program outcomes

Question 1 (all departments) Completed output initiatives from past budgets

a) For all initiatives that were completed in 2020-21, please provide details of the outcomes achieved in the community and the outcomes actually achieved to date. Please use initiatives names as specified in *Budget Paper No.3: Service Delivery* and link the initiative to the responsible output(s) and portfolio(s).

	Year and fu	unding allocated	Actual data of completion			Outnut(s) and	
Initiative	Budget year	Funding allocated	Actual date of completion (month and year)	Expected outcomes	Actual outcomes	Output(s) and portfolio(s)	

Question 2 (all departments) Program outcomes

Outcomes reflect the impact on the community of the goods and services provided by a department. The questions in this section all relate to the outcomes that the department contributed to in 2020-21.

- a) Using the format of the table below, please outline the five programs that delivered the most important outcomes in the community¹ achieved by the department in 2020-21 including:
 - i. The name of the program
 - ii. The relevant output(s) and portfolio(s) responsible for delivery of the program
 - iii. The program objectives
 - iv. The actual outcome achieved
 - v. The actions taken to deliver the actual outcome (i.e. the most important elements/essential parts that led the department to deliver the outcome).

	Program	Output(s) and portfolio(s)	Program objectives	Description of actual outcome achieved	Description of the actions taken to deliver the actual outcome
1.					
2.					
3.					
4.					
5.					

Received 3 November 2021

¹ 'Outcomes' are the impact of service delivery on the community rather than a description of the services delivered. The Committee considers that an outcome could be considered important for a variety of reasons, such as the amount of funding allocated to the program, the public interest in the service or goods being delivered or where particular actions taken by the Department delivered improved outcomes.

- b) Using the format of the table below, please outline the five least performing programs that did not deliver their planned outcomes in the community by the department in 2020-21including:
 - i. The name of the program
 - ii. The relevant output(s) and portfolio(s) responsible for delivery of the program
 - iii. The program objectives
 - iv. The actual outcome achieved
 - v. Explanation for not achieving the planned outcome (including a description of what actions were taken to try and achieve the planned outcome).

	Program	Output(s) and portfolio(s)	Program objectives	Description of actual outcome achieved	Detailed explanation for not delivering the planned outcome
1.					
2.					
3.					
4.					
5.					

Question 3 (all departments) Treasurer's advances and other budget supplementation

a) Please identify all output(s) and portfolio(s) (and relate them to departmental programs) for which the department received additional funding after the initial Budget in 2020-21.

For each output, please quantify the additional funding, indicate the source of the additional funding (e.g. Treasurer's Advance, unused prior years appropriations under s32 of the *Financial Management Act 1994* (Vic), supplementation through a Temporary Advance under section 35 of the FMA, or any possible sources of funding as listed in the Resource Management Framework, section 4, pg. 58) and explain why additional funding was required after funding was allocated in the Budget.

Output(s) and portfolio(s)	Program	Program objectives	Funding allocated in 2020-21 Budget	Additional funding (\$ million)	Source of additional funding as per the Resource Management Framework	Funding utilised 2020-21	Reasons why additional funding was required
	Total 2020-21						

b) Please provide the details of the outcomes achieved from each of these programs.

Output(s) and portfolio(s)	Program	Outcomes achieved

Question 4 2020-21 Budget funding allocation and performance

The 2020-21 Budget allocated \$2.8 billion output funding investment for 'better patient outcomes to meet demand and support hospitals as the department transitions to COVID-normal including \$300 million for an elective surgery blitz'.²

a) Please provide a detailed breakdown of the \$2.8 billion and the actual amount spent in 2020-21. Please provide an explanation for any variances of ±5% according to the type of health care services provided.

Type of service - health care	2020-21 budget \$ million	2020-21 actual \$ million	Variance (%)	Explanation for variance	Outcomes delivered
Ambulance Victoria					
Elective surgery					
Community health services					
Mental health					
~insert more lines as necessary~					
Total	\$2,800				

² Hon Martin Foley MP, 2020–21 Budget estimates hearing presentation: Health, supplementary evidence, received 4 December 2020, p. 4.

b) Please provide a detailed breakdown of any additional health portfolio expenditure that was announced after the 2020-21 Budget was handed down.

Type of service - health care	2020-21 allocation \$ million	2020-21 actual \$ million	Variance (%)	Explanation for variance	Outcomes delivered
Ambulance Victoria					
Elective surgery					
Community health					
Mental health services					
Vaccine rollout					
Contact tracing					
COVID-19 Testing					
~insert more lines as					
Total					

c) For the following performance measures, please outline the amount allocated in the 2020-21 Budget and the actual amount spent in 2020-21. Please provide an explanation for the variance in expenditure (of ±5%) as well as the reason/s for not meeting or exceeding the target.

Performance measure	2020-21 target	2020-21 actual	2020-21 \$ million allocated	2020-21 \$ million actual	Expenditure variance (%)	Explanation
Proportion of ambulance patient transfers within 40 minutes						
Proportion of emergency (Code 1) incidents responded to within 15 minutes – statewide						
Proportion of emergency (Code 1) incidents responded to within 15 minutes in centres with more than 7 500 population						
Emergency patients admitted to a mental health bed within eight hours						
Occupied residential bed days Occupied sub-acute bed days						
Women screened for breast cancer by BreastScreen Victoria						
Persons screened for prevention and early detection of health conditions – pulmonary tuberculosis screening						
Participation rate of women in target age range screened for breast cancer						

Monash Health

d)	What COVID-19 performance measures did the Department of Health have in place for the year 2020-21?
e)	Where are those performance measures reported on?
f)	What were the outcomes achieved against those performance measures in 2020-21?
· <i>,</i>	

PAEC General Questionnaire | Monash Health | 10 13 of 55 g) To gain an understanding of Victoria's health care system and performance, please provide the data for the following variables, including an explanation for the increase or decrease compared to the previous year's data.

Category	As at 30 June 2017	As at 30 June 2018	As at 30 June 2019	As at 30 June 2020	As at 30 June 2021	Variance between 2020 and 2021 Explanation for the variance between 30 June 2020 and 2021
Number of patients treated in emergency departments						
Number of hospital beds						
Number of intensive care unit beds						
Average time spent in waiting rooms – emergency departments						
Number of patients waiting for treatment – elective surgery						

Ambulance Victoria	2020-21 budget \$ million	2020-21 actual \$ million	Variance (%)	Explanation for variance
Employee expenses (relating to frontline staff)				
Employee expenses (relating to frontline staff)				
	As at 1 July	As at 30 June		
Number of shifts per week, frontline				
Number of staff, frontline				

Question 5 Victorian Contribution to National Disability Insurance Scheme

a) The 2020-21 Budget allocated \$1.7 billion to the Victorian Contribution to National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS).³ In relation to outcomes achieved in the 2020-21 year, please provide the following information on disability services and support in Victoria.

Department of Families, Fairness and Housing/DHHS	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2021
Number of people with disability in Victoria			
Number of NDIS participants			
Number of NDIS participants - identified as Culturally and linguistically diverse			
Number of clients transitioned to NDIS			
Participant satisfaction with services received			
Average wait time to access NDIS package			
Disability workforce - number of workers			
Victorian NDIS Implementation Taskforce - \$ million allocated			
Victorian NDIS Implementation Taskforce - \$ million spent			
Victorian NDIS Implementation Taskforce - outcomes achieved			
An update on NDIS Workforce and Skills Plan			

Department of Education and Training	30 June 2019	30 June 2020	30 June 2021
Number of school children identified with disability in Victoria			
Number of schools that received funding through NDIS			
Number of students that were supported through NDIS			
\$ amount spent to students with Disabilities Transport Program			
Number of students who accessed the Disabilities Transport Program			
Number of young people with disability who transitioned from school			
into employment or other options			
Number of parent/carer(s) and families that were supported to Early			
Childhood Intervention Services through NDIS			

PAEC General Questionnaire | Monash Health | 12
15 of 55
OFFICIAL

³ Department of Treasury and Finance, Budget Paper No. 2: 2020–21 strategy and outlook, Melbourne, 2020, p. 248.

b) What mechanisms did the Victorian Government have in place to ensure Victorians with disability and the Victorian community received value for money and quality services in exchange for the \$1.7 billion paid to the NDIS in 2020-21?							

PAEC General Questionnaire | Monash Health | 13 16 of 55

Section B: Asset investment

Question 6 (all departments) Capital expenditure variances, completion date and scope changes – existing projects

Please provide details of all capital asset programs where:

- a) there was a variance between TEI at announcement compared to the revised TEI as at 30 June 2021 of equal to or greater than ±5% or \$50 million and an explanation for the variance
- b) the estimated completion date at announcement is different to the completion date as at 30 June 2021 and an explanation for the change
- c) the scope of the project at announcement is different to the scope of the project as at 30 June 2021.

Capital expenditure

Project	Output(s) and portfolio(s) and/or agency responsible for the project	Total actual expenditure spent from announcement to 30 June 2021 (\$ million)	TEI at announcement (\$ million)	Revised TEI as at 30 June 2021 (\$ million)	Variance between TEI at announcement compared to Revised TEI as at 30 June 2021 Budget (±5% or \$50 million) explanation

Completion date

Project	Output(s) and portfolio(s) and/or agency responsible for the project	Estimated completion date at announcement	Revised completion date as at 30 June 2021	Explanation

Scope

Project	Output(s) and portfolio(s) and/or agency responsible for the project	Scope at announcement	Details of scope change(s) and date(s) scope changes occurred

Question 7 (all departments) Details of actual capital expenditure – completed projects (or expected to be completed)

Please provide the following details about asset investment projects that were completed in the 2020-21 financial year:

- a) Project name, project objectives and Department(s), Output(s) and Portfolio(s) and/or Agency/Agencies responsible for delivery of the project
- b) Total Estimated Investment (TEI) at announcement
- c) Actual cost of project
- d) Estimated completion date at announcement
- e) Actual completion date
- f) Explanations for any variance in capital expenditure and/or completion date.

Project	Original project objectives	Responsible Department(s), Output(s) and Portfolio(s) and/or Agency/Agencies	TEI at announcement (\$ million)	Actual cost of project (\$ million)	Estimated completion date at announcement	Actual completed date	Variance explanation (\$ value variance)

PAEC General Questionnaire | Monash Health | 15 18 of 55

Question 8 (all departments) High-value high-risk projects, gateway reviews and business cases

Under the High Value High Risk (HVHR) Framework, a project will be classified as HVHR if it is a budget funded project that has a Total Estimated Investment (TEI) of over \$250 million. HVHR projects are subject to compulsory Gateway reviews, where Gates 1 through 6 are compulsory for all eligible projects: Gate 2 outlines the development of a business case.

Please list all projects included in the 2020-21 financial year that were allocated to the department and were classified as HVHR and project objectives. Please also specify which gateway reviews, if any, were completed during 2020-21 and business case details for each project.

HVHR Project	Original project objectives	Gateway review name/ Date completed	Date business case completed	Business case – publicly available? Y/N	Business case link (URL)

Question 9 (all departments) Public Private Partnership (PPP) expenditure – existing and completed

Please provide the following information related to the department's PPP projects:

- a) The total estimated PPP investment value, the total actual expenditure from announcement to 30 June 2021, or the actual cost spent to 30 June 2021 (actual cost spent in the respective financial year) and the benefits of using the PPP financing model when delivering/funding a project over other financing methods.
- b) Where the estimated completion date at announcement is different to the completion date in the 2019-20 Budget and an explanation for any variance.
- c) Where the scope of the PPP at announcement is different to the scope of the project as it is presented in the 2019-20 Budget.

Investment value and benefit of using PPP model

Project name	Project objectives	Output(s) and portfolio(s) and/or agency	Total estimated PPP investment value at the start of the project (\$ million)	Total actual expenditure since the announcement to 30 June 2021 (\$ million)	Actual expenditure in year ending 30 June 2021 (\$ million)	Benefits of using PPP model versus other delivery/funding models

Completion date

Project name	Output(s) and portfolio(s) and/or agency	Estimated completion date	Revised estimated completion date	Variance explanation

Scope

Project name	Output(s) and portfolio(s) and/or agency	Original scope	Revised scope	Explanation for scope changes

Question 10 Alliance contracting expenditure – existing and completed

Please provide the following information related to the department's alliance contracting projects:

- a) The total estimated investment value, the total actual expenditure from announcement to 30 June 2021, or the actual cost spent to 30 June 2021 (actual cost spent in the respective financial year) and the benefits of using the alliance contracting model when delivering/funding a project over other financing methods.
- b) Where the estimated completion date at announcement is different to the completion date in the 2019-20 Budget and an explanation for any variance.
- c) Where the scope of the alliance contract at announcement is different to the scope of the project as it is presented in the 2019-20 Budget.

Investment value and benefit of using alliance contracting model

Project name	Project objectives	Output(s) and portfolio(s) and/or agency	Total estimated investment value at the start of the project (\$ million)	Total actual expenditure since the announcement to 30 June 2021 (\$ million)	Actual expenditure in year ending 30 June 2021 (\$ million)	Benefits of using alliance contracting model versus other delivery/funding models

Completion date

Project name	Output(s) and portfolio(s) and/or agency	Estimated completion date	Revised estimated completion date	Variance explanation

Scope

Project name	Output(s) and portfolio(s) and/or agency	Original scope	Revised scope	Explanation for scope changes

Section C: Revenue and appropriations

Question 11 (all departments and entities) Revenue – variances from previous year

Please explain any changes equal to or greater than ±10% or \$100 million between the actual result for 2019-20 and 2020-21 for each revenue category detailed in your operating statement. Please also indicate what any additional revenue was used for or how any reduced amounts of revenue affected service delivery and then link it to the relevant output and portfolio.

Please also detail the outcomes in the community⁴ achieved by any additional expenses or the impact on the community of reduced expenses (if there was no impact, please explain how that was achieved).

For departments, please provide data consolidated on the same basis as the budget portfolios outcomes statement in your annual reports.

If there were no revenue/income categories for the department/agency for which the 2020-21 expenditure changed from the prior year's expenditure by more than $\pm 10\%$ or \$100 million, you do not need to answer this question. If this is the case, please indicate 'no relevant line items' in the table(s) below.

Revenue category	2019-20 actual (\$ million)	2020-21 actual (\$ million)	Explanations for changes ±10% or \$100 million	How the additional revenue was used/the impact of reduced revenue. If no impact, how was this achieved	Relevant output(s) and portfolio(s)
Patient and Resident Fees	37	1	Increased inpatient activity after COVID19 impacted significantly on FY20.	Patient Care	
Commercial Activities	122		Increased patient fees due to recovery from COVID19 slowdown in FY20. Includes fees from Pathology COVID testing	Support patient activity	
Government Grants (State) – Operating Income	404		Increased funding for Casey Tower, COVID19/Vaccination and Mental Health Funding offset by reduction in other grants Reduction due to slow recovery from COVID19 impacts including car parking, rental income, donations	 \$15m to support the increased activity with the commissioning of Casey Tower \$92m to support COVID19 and Vaccination additional costs and impacts on the Health Service \$26m Mental Health funding to introduce new programs as required (\$17m) reduction in other financial grants Foregone revenue was claimed in COVID19 impacts submission 	

Government Grants (State) – Capital Income	140	308	Capital grants for major projects	 \$160m Victorian Heart Hospital \$21m COVID19 and Vaccination Capital Spend (\$17m) reduction from prior year Casey Tower funding due to project being completed
Other Capital purpose income	38	33	Incremental capital allocation	Used for Health Service projects including Electronic Medical Record, infrastructure and critical plant and equipment replacement.
Assets received free of charge	4	43	Assets and consumables received free of charge via COVID19 State Supply Chain	Used for treating COVID19 patients
Other Interest	2	1	Lower income generated on Centralised Banking System deposits due to interest rates.	Not Applicable

⁴That is, the impact of service delivery on the community rather than a description of the services delivered.

Question 12 (all departments and entities) Revenue – variances from budget to actual

Please explain any variances equal to or greater than ±10% or \$100 million between the initial budget estimate (not the revised estimate) and the actual result for 2020-21 for each revenue category detailed in your operating statement. Please also indicate what any additional revenue was used for or how any reduced amounts of revenue affected service delivery and then link it to the relevant output and portfolio.

For departments, please provide data consolidated on the same basis as the budget portfolios outcomes statement in your annual reports.

Revenue category	2020-21 Budget estimate (\$ million)	2020-21 actual (\$ million)	Explanations for changes ±10% or \$100 million	How the additional revenue was used/the impact of reduced revenue. If no impact, explain why	Relevant output(s) and portfolio(s)
Patient and Resident Fees	56	43	Reduced activity mainly due to COVID19	 Mainly claimed as foregone revenue in COVID19 impacts submission 	
Private Practice Fees	11	10	Reduced activity mainly due to COVID19	 Mainly claimed as foregone revenue in COVID19 impacts submission 	
Government Grants (State) – Operating Income	219	461	Funding for Casey Tower, COVID19/Vaccination and other financial outlay	 \$15m towards the operating of Casey Tower \$198m funding to support COVID19 and Vaccination incremental costs and impacts \$37m in other Financial Grants 	
Government Grants (Commonwealth) – Operating Income	6	7	Additional funding for Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder received	- Funding used to support patients	
Government Grants (State) – Capital Income	182	357	Incremental Capital allocation for major projects Reduced activity mainly	Primarily Victorian Heart Hospital - Mainly claimed as foregone revenue in COVID19 impacts submission	
Other Capital purpose income	5	33	Incremental capital allocation	 Capital Income used for Health Service projects including EMR, infrastructure and critical plant and equipment 	

Monash Health

Capital Donations	4	5	FY21 includes donations in kind for the Imagination tree at Monash Children's Hospital
Assets received free of charge	0	43	Assets and consumables received free of charge via COVID19 State Supply Chain
Other Interest	1	1	Lower income generated Not Applicable on Centralised Banking System deposits due to interest rates

Section D: Expenses

Question 13 (all departments and entities) Expenses changed from previous year

Please explain any changes equal to or greater than ±10% or \$100 million with regards to the actual result for 2019-20 and 2020-21 for each category of expenses detailed in your operating statement. Please explain any changes equal to or greater than ±10% or \$100 million with regards the actual result for 2020-21 and the 2020-21 budget estimate. Please also detail the outcomes in the community⁵ achieved by any additional expenses or the impact on the community of reduced expenses (if there was no impact, please explain how that was achieved).

For departments, please provide data consolidated on the same basis as the budget portfolios outcomes statement in your annual reports.

Expenses category	2019-20 actual \$ million	2020-21 actual \$ million	Explanations for variances ±10% or \$100 million	Outcomes achieved by additional expenses/impact of reduced expenses. If no impact, how was this
Employee Expenses	1,653	1,838	Increase in EFT to support COVID-19, Vaccinations and operating Casey Towers	Increase in EFT to support COVID-19, Vaccinations and operating Casey Towers
Supplies and Consumables	302	353	Includes received FOC by State Supply for COVID-19	Support COVID-19 response
Finance Costs	8	7	Decrease due to reclassification of Casey Lease costs to PPP Operating expenses	Not Applicable
PPP Operating Expenses	9	11	Increase in lease costs for Casey Hospital Tower Expansion (project completed in April 2020)	Meet lease requirements
Other Non- Operating Expenses	10	17	Mainly from increased expenditure in Sundry Capital Purchases due to COVID-19 in 2020-21	Support COVID-19 Response
Depreciation and Amortisation	119	143	Depreciation of Casey Hospital Tower expansion	Meet accounting standards
Supplies and Consumables	309	353	Includes received FOC by State Supply for COVID-19	Support COVID-19 response
Other Non- Operating Expenses	5	17	Mainly from increase expenditure in Sundry Capital Purchases due to COVID-19 in 2020-21	Support COVID-19 Response

Received 3 November 2021

OFFICIAL

PAEC General Questionnaire | Monash Health | 23
26 of 55

⁵That is, the impact of service delivery on the community rather than a description of the services delivered.

Question 14 Expenses/interventions related to COVID-19 pandemic response

For the year 2020-21, please outline the programs and/or initiatives that were announced as part of the Victorian Government's response to the COVID-19 pandemic in the order of the highest amount allocated.

Please indicate if the department made use of emergency advances and retroactive funding approvals.

Please note whether there are identified performance measures in the budget papers related to the announced programs and please provide details of the reported outcomes.

a) On budget

Name of the program/initiative	Program/ initiative objectives	Expenditure as at 30 June 2021	Output/ Portfolio	Use of emergency advances/ retroactive funding approvals – Yes or No	Performance measures for the program/Initiative	Outcomes/project status
Not Applicable						

b) Off budget⁶

Name of the program/initiative	Program/ initiative objectives	Expenditure as at 30 June 2021	Output/ Portfolio	Use of emergency advances/ retroactive funding approvals – Yes or No	Performance measures for the program/Initiative	Outcomes/project status
Not Applicable						

c) What additional budgetary control and tracking/traceability measures were introduced by the department in 2020-21 to ensure COVID-19 programs/initiatives were deployed effectively and in line with the intended purpose? Were any of these measures amended during 2020-21? If so, how and for what reason/s were they amended?

⁶ 'Off budget' is where funds for programs/initiatives are not appropriated in the budget and therefore are not accounted for in the budget. For those programs that received appropriations through specially created programs or subprograms of the budget are known as 'on-budget arrangements'. For example, it could be that most COVID-19 initiatives are off budget items during 2020-21 unless prior budgeted programs were extended/expedited, etc. due to COVID-19, then these would be classified as 'on budget'.

Question 15 (all departments and entities) Changes to service delivery from savings initiatives

For each of the savings initiatives detailed in the 2017-18 Budget, 2018-19 Budget, 2019-20 Budget and 2020-21 Budget⁷ please provide the following details of the impact on service delivery:

- a) Savings target in the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 Budget and 2020-21 Budgets and the amount of the savings target allocated to the department/entity
- b) Actual savings achieved in 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21 and the actions taken to achieve the savings target allocated and their impact, including the link to the relevant output and portfolio impacted.

Savings initiative in the Budget \$ million	Savings target allocated to the department/entity in 2020-21	Actual savings achieved in 2020-21 \$ million	Actions taken to achieve the allocated savings target	What was the impact as a result of the measures taken to achieve the savings target? (e.g. frontline and/or other areas of business that saw the impact) If no impact, how was this achieved	Which output(s) and portfolio(s) were impacted (if relevant)
2017-18	Not Applicable				
2018-19					
2019-20					
2020-21					

⁷ If there were any savings and efficiencies initiatives introduced post 2020-21 Budget.

Question 16 (all departments) Achievement of reprioritisation of existing resources

The 2020-21 Budget includes targets for 'reprioritisation and revenue offsets' to fund new initiatives (2020-21 Budget Paper No.2, p.75). This is in addition to any savings or efficiencies resulting from expenditure reduction measures. For the department (including all controlled entities),8 please indicate:

- what areas of expenditure (including projects and programs if appropriate) the funding was reprioritised from (i.e. what the funding was initially provided for)
- what areas of expenditure were the funds actually spent on b)
- for each area of expenditure (or project or program), how much funding was reprioritised in each year c)
- d) the impact of the reprioritisation (in terms of service delivery) on those areas.

Area of expenditure originally funded	Area of expenditure actually funded	Value of funding reprioritised in 2020-21 (\$ million)	Impact of reprioritisation of funding (if no impact, how was this achieved)	Output(s) and portfolio(s) impacted (if relevant)

That is, please provide this information for the department on the same basis of consolidation as is used in the budget papers.

Question 17 (all departments) Contractors, Consultants and Labour Hire Arrangements

Please indicate how much the department spent on contractors, consultants and labour hire arrangements during 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21. Labour hire arrangements include the cost of engaging the labour recruiting firm, plus additional costs paid to the labour recruiting firm for the provision of the services of the contractor. Please also explain variances equal to or greater than ±10% between years and list the business areas impacted and how.

2018-19 Actual \$ million	2019-20 Actual \$ million	2020-21 Actual \$ million	Explanation for variances (2018-19 over 2019-20) ±10%	Explanation for variances (2019-20 over 2020-21) ±10%	Which business areas were impacted/benefitted and how?	Please link your response to relevant output(s) and portfolio(s)

Question 18 Dividends and other amounts paid to the general government sector

Please detail the type and value of dividends, amounts equivalent to dividends, non-dividend grants, and capital repatriations paid by your agency to the general government sector in 2020-21, explaining the reasons for any significant changes over that period and the impact of any changes on the entity.

Please provide the economic funding ratio or accounting funding ratio as applicable at 30 June 2021. Please provide details of the methodology used for the ratio calculation.

Type of dividend paid	2020-21 Budget (\$ million) BP 4, pg. 20	2020-21 Actual (\$ million)	Explanations for variances ±10% or \$100 million	Impact on the agency. If no impact, how was this achieved	Funding ratio at 30 June 2021

Economic funding ratio / accounting funding ratio as at 30 June 2021	Details of the methodology				

Section E: Overall financial performance

Question 19 (all departments) Impact of COVID-19 on financial performance – 2020-21

Please outline and quantify, where possible, the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on the department/agency's financial performance.

Line item in the Comprehensive operating statement for the financial year ended 30 June 2021	2020-21 Budget	2020-21 Actual	Explanation of the impact caused by COVID-19 pandemic
Total revenue and income from transactions			
Total expenses from transactions			
Net result from transactions (net operating balance)			

Section F: Public sector workforce

Question 20 (all departments and entities) Full Time Equivalent (FTE) staff by level and category

Please fully complete the table below, providing actual FTE staff numbers at 30 June 2019, at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2021 (broken down by the categories listed below) for the department. Please include specific categories as relevant to the department/entity and where relevant, provide a description of what categories constitute 'other'. Please provide figures consolidated on the same basis as the expenditure for the department in the budget papers and detail which, if any, entities are included in the FTE numbers provided.

Category	30 June 2019 Actual FTE number	30 June 2020 Actual FTE number	30 June 2021 Actual FTE number
Secretary			
EO-1			
EO-2			
EO-3			
VPS Grade 7 (STS)			
VPS Grade 6			
VPS Grade 5			
VPS Grade 4			
VPS Grade 3			
VPS Grade 2			
VPS Grade 1			
Government Teaching Service			
Health services			
Police			
Nurses/Midwives	5,301	5,646	6,194
Allied health professionals	1,053	1,102	1,148
Child protection			
Disability development and support			
*Youth custodial officers			
*Custodial officers			
**Other	5,751	6,163	6,784
Total	12,105	12,911	14,126

*Please provide a breakdown for Youth custodial and Custodial officers by level (for example, YW1, YW2, YW3, YW4, YW5 and YW6).

**Other includes: Administration, Medical, Hotel Services, Health Professionals

Numbers include FTE for the following entities:

Jessie McPherson Private Hospital

Question 21 (all departments and entities) Salary by employment category

In the table below, please detail the salary costs for 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21, broken down by ongoing, fixed-term and casual, and explain any variances equal to or greater than $\pm 10\%$ or \$100 million between the years for each category.

Employment category	Gross salary 2018-19 (\$ million)	Gross salary 2019-20 (\$ million)	Gross salary 2020-21 (\$ million)	Explanation for any year-on-year variances ±10% or \$100 million
Ongoing	1,231	1,357	1,498	Increase in EFT to support COVID19, Vaccinations and operating Casey Towers
Fixed-term				
Casual	109	107	102	
Total (Salary costs disclosed exclude on-costs, Workcover premium and agency expenses.	1,340	1,464	1,600	

Question 22 (all departments and entities) Executive salary increases

Please detail the number of executives who received increases in their base remuneration in 2020-21, breaking that information down according to what proportion of their salary the increase was, and explaining the reasons for executives' salaries increasing in each bracket.

Increase in base remuneration	:	tion of this amou	creases in their base nt in 2020-21, apart ment agreements	Reasons for these increases	
	Female	Male	Self-described		
0-3%				All movements in line with employment	
3-5%				agreements	
5-10%					
10-15%					
greater than 15%					

Section G: Government decisions impacting on finances

Question 23 (all departments and entities) Commonwealth Government decisions

Please identify any Commonwealth Government decisions during 2020-21 which had not been anticipated/not been concluded before the finalisation of the State budget in 2020-21 and their impact(s) on the department's/entity's finances or activities during those years (including new funding agreements, discontinued agreements and changes to funding levels). Please quantify the impact on income and expenses where possible.

Commonwealth Covernment desision	Impact(s) in 2020-21		
Commonwealth Government decision	on income (\$ million)	on expenses (\$ million)	

Question 24 (all departments and entities) Commonwealth and National Cabinet decisions

Please identify any Commonwealth and National Cabinet decisions during 2020-21 which had not been anticipated/not been concluded before the finalisation of the State Budget in 2020-21 and their impact(s) on the department's/entity's finances or activities during those years (including new funding agreements, discontinued agreements and changes to agreements). Please quantify the impact on income and expenses where possible.

Commonwealth Government decision	Impact in 2020-21		
on income (\$ million)		on expenses (\$ million)	

National Cabinet decision	Impact in 2020-21			
National Cabinet decision	on income (\$ million) on expenses (\$ mill			

Section H: General

Question 25 (all departments and entities) Reviews/studies undertaken

- a) Please list all internal⁹ and external reviews/studies, established, commenced or completed by or on behalf of the department/agency in 2020-21 and provide the following information:
 - i. Name of the review/study and which portfolio and output/agency is responsible
 - ii. Reasons for the review/study
 - iii. Terms of reference/scope of the review/study
 - iv. Timeline for the review/study
 - v. Anticipated outcomes of the review/study
 - vi. Estimated cost of the review/study and final cost (if completed)
 - vii. Final cost if completed
 - viii. Where completed, whether the review/study is publicly available and where.

Name of the review (portfolio(s) and output(s)/agency responsible)	Reasons for the review/study	Terms of reference/scope	Timeline	Anticipated outcomes	Estimated cost (\$)	Final cost if completed (\$)	Publicly available (Y/N) and URL
Health Purchasing Victoria (HealthShare) Compliance Ernst and Young	Internal Audit HealthShare required three yearly audit	Audit to determine Monash Health's level of compliance against the HealthShare Health Purchasing Polices and Compliance Framework	Reported November 2020	Determination of compliance with the HealthShare Health Purchasing Policies	\$26,740	\$33,425	N
Accounts Payable Ernst and Young	Internal Audit	Routine audit to determine control effectiveness of Accounts Payable processes	Reported February 2021	Identification of any improvement activities around Accounts Payable controls and processes	\$36,882	\$36,882	N
Cybersecurity – MediPath penetration test	Internal Audit	Annual cybersecurity audit to ascertain the extent to which the system is resistant to intrusion attempts	Reported May 2021	Identification of any vulnerabilities within the MediPath environment	\$34,150	\$34,150	N

Victorian Integrated Non-Admitted Health (VINAH) Data Integrity	Internal Audit	Rolling schedule to the audit integrity processes for accurate dataset capture and reporting	Reported May 2021	Determination of the effectiveness of processes to support complete, timely and accurate reporting of VINAH data	\$27,320	\$27,320	N
Privacy and Confidentiality of Health Records	Internal Audit	Appropriate capture, management and security of patient health records in accordance with the <i>Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014</i>	2021	Determination of compliance against the <i>Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014</i> in the management of patient health records	\$38,248	\$38,248	N
Outpatient Telehealth Review	Internal Audit	Review the establishment of the increased telehealth program in response to COVID-19, including the current processes, systems and controls	Undertaken May – July 2021 Reported in August 2021	Identification of any opportunities to enhance the continued use and uptake of telehealth services	\$40,980	\$40,980	N
Standing Directions under the <i>Financial</i> <i>Management Act</i> 1994	Internal Audit		- July 2021	Review to support the attestation process of compliance against the Standing Directions under the Financial Management Act 1994	\$20,490	\$20,490	N
	External Audit Victorian Auditor- General's Office	Annual audit of Monash Health's financial statements	Throughout 2020-21 Final Report August 2021	Provision of an audit opinion on the accuracy of financial statements	\$350,000	\$261,500	Y
FBT Audit Ernst and Young	Compliance	Compliance with FTB legislation	June 2021	Approved FTB for lodgment with the ATO	\$25,000	\$25,000	N

Prudential Audit DFK Kidsons	Compliance with bond holdings	Compliance with the <i>Aged Care Act</i> 1997	Reported October 2020	Unqualified Opinion	\$5,500	\$5,500	Υ
Prudential Audit DFK Kidsons	Compliance with bond holdings	Compliance with the Aged Care Act 1997	To be undertaken in October 2021 for June 2021 balances	Unqualified Opinion	\$5,500	\$5,500	Υ

b) Please outline the Department's/Agencies in house skills/capabilities/expertise to conduct reviews/studies/evaluations/data analysis of the programs and services for which the Department /Agency is responsible.

Monash Health does not have an internal audit department with the resources required to undertake internal audits. Monash Health has a contract with Ernst and Young to provide Internal Audit services.

-

⁹ Internal reviews do not include internal costings. Internal reviews/studies include any reviews or studies undertaken by your department and not given to external consultants. Internal reviews/studies do not include inquiries carried out by Parliamentary Committees or reviews undertaken by integrity agencies.

Question 26 (all departments) Annual reports – performance measure targets and objective indicators

a) Please provide the following information on performance measures that did not meet their 2020-21 targets.

Performance measure	2020-21 target (Budget)	2020-21 actual (Annual report)	Variance	Explanation	Output(s) and portfolio(s) impacted

b) Please provide the following information for objective indicators where data was not available at publication of the annual report

Objective indicators stated in annual report for which data was not available at date of publication	Best available data for 2020-21 and relevant date	Explanation for the absence of data in annual report	Action taken to ensure timely data for 2021-22 annual report
Not Applicable			

Question 27 (all departments and entities) Challenges experienced by department/agency

Please list a minimum of five main challenges/risks faced by the department/agency in 2020-21.

A significant challenge may be any matter or strategy that impacted the department/agency, whether it arose externally or internally or as a result of new policy or legislation.

	Challenge experienced	Internal/ External	Causes of the challenge	Action taken to manage the challenge/risk
1.	Growing demand in surgery, obstetrics, and community-based services		High population growth, with complex health care needs across south eastern growth corridor of Melbourne. Protracted deferment of nonurgent elective surgery (as a result of the COVID response) leading to wait list growth.	 Expansion of Casey Hospital inpatient capacity, day procedural beds, plus an intensive care unit and more operating theatres, giving easier access to higher acuity care. Service planning initiatives (including relocation of services to best align with community need), site-based reconfiguration and hospital construction across Dandenong, Casey, Cranbourne and Pakenham Hospitals, as well as the Victorian Heart Hospital build (commissioning due early 2023) Follow-up with patients whose care was postponed due to the pandemic, ensuring they received the required care at the right time. Additional theatre sessions were scheduled (within the parameters set by DoH), and contracted care arrangements with private hospital providers (e.g. elective surgery) were scaled up. Expansion of telehealth services, allowing patients to receive care from their own homes. Establishment of the South East Public Health Unit, with its initial focus being the pandemic response, specifically contact tracing and vaccination activities. Institution of Care in Community workstream initiatives Better@Home, GEM@Home, Care@Home, and StayWell@Home, to provide enhanced care for patients outside of an acute setting Development of a Mental Health service delivery program to improve mental health care for patients across key entry points.
2.	Growing demand in emergency departments		High population growth, with complex health care needs across south eastern growth corridor of Melbourne	 Expansion of the Casey Hospital Emergency Department for both adult and paediatric patients. Construction of the new Monash Medical Centre Clayton Emergency Department (commissioning planned for early 2022), with dedicated adult, paediatric and mental health management spaces. Instituting an emergency access improvement work program (Exceptional Care Anywhere), addressing process improvement and resourcing, comprehensive inpatient

3.	Workforce challenges Ex	There is a national shortage of critical care, general and mental health nurses. In 2021, scaling of the nursing workforce was required as COVID-19 vaccination and screening services drew upon this resource. Extensive furlough of healthcare workers associated with Monash Health and community COVID-19 exposures. Workforce fatigue associated with extensive PPE requirements, new models of care, social distancing requirements and prolonged lockdown.	 Prioritisation of workforce planning across all professional disciplines and a review of recruitment strategies. Ensuring sufficient capacity for the COVID-19 response – (i) vaccination (ii) contact tracing and testing (iii) community care pathways and (iv) hospital capacity Increased recruitment of nursing trainees to appropriately supervised workforce roles, and to junior nursing and medical staff roles Upskilling employees for higher duties through training programs such as the Critical Care Familiarisation program. Supporting employees through new and varied wellbeing initiatives aimed at reducing burnout associated with COVID pandemic. Enforcing COVID-Safe protection measures for the organisation's workforce and supporting employees to work remotely where possible.
4.	Infrastructure upgrade requirements	Technological/software developments inconsistent with current infrastructure system capabilities High level of maintenance and repairs for ageing infrastructure	 Development of project business cases seeking capital funding for service delivery expansion and asset replacement/renewal. Development of Asset Management Plans forecasting longer term investment requirements. Utilisation of enterprise risk framework to assess and prioritise investment requirements for asset maintenance and replacement Progressive alignment of asset management strategy towards the requirements of the Asset Management Accountability Framework. Introduction of a maintenance upgrade work program to optimise aging infrastructure.

Question 28 (all departments) Newly created bodies

Please list all newly created bodies (authorities, offices, commissions, boards and/or councils) created within the department in 2020-21 and provide the following information:

- Date body created
- Expenditure in relevant financial year
- FTE staff at end of relevant financial year
- Purpose/function(s) of the body

Name of the body	Date body created	Expenditure in 2020-21	FTE staff	Purpose/function(s) of the body	Who the head of the newly created body directly reports to

Section I: Implementation of previous recommendations

Question 29 (relevant departments only)

a) Please provide an update on the status of the implementation of each of the below recommendations that were made by the Committee in its *Report on the 2019-20 Financial and Performance Outcomes* and supported by the Government.

Department	Recommendations supported by Government	Actions taken at 30 September 2021

b) Please provide an update on the status of the implementation of each of the recommendations that were made by the Committee in its *Report on the 2017-18 and 2018-19 Financial and Performance Outcomes* supported by the Government.

Department	Recommendations supported by Government	Actions taken at 30 September 2021

Section J: Department of Treasury and Finance only

Question 30 (DTF only) Revenue certification

The Resource Management Framework outlines that on receipt of a revenue certification invoice, DTF assesses actual departmental output performance against agreed performance measures based on output delivery. In the event that assessment at output level may be deemed inappropriate, DTF and the department may agree on alternative, suitable and appropriate performance information that could be used as the basis for revenue certification.¹⁰

Please detail all outputs which DTF assessed as not having met their measures for 2020-21, indicating for each:

- a) the relevant Department, output and portfolio
- b) the performance measure(s) not met
- the reasons provided by the Department for the performance measure(s) not being met
- d) the amount of the initial invoice
- the amount of revenue certified
- f) the evidence base used for the revenue certification.

Department	Output(s) and portfolio(s)	Performance measure(s) not met	Reason for not meeting the measure(s)	Initial invoice (\$ million)	Revenue certified (\$ million)	Evidence used for approving the invoice or not approving the invoice

¹⁰ Resource Management Framework, pg. 101

Question 31 (DTF only) Net cash flows from investments in financial assets for policy purposes – General Government Sector (GGS)

Financial assets include cash, investments, loans and placements. This question seeks to ascertain the variance behind the estimated value of the financial assets held versus the actual value of the financial assets and the projects that contributed to the variance.

Regarding the 'net cash flows from investments in financial assets for policy purposes' in the GGS cash flow statement for 2020-21, please provide:

- a) the top five projects that contributed to the variance recorded in each year
- b) the initial budget estimate (not the revised estimate) for net cash flow in 2020-21 (source: 2020-21 BP 4, pg. 11) and the actual net cash flow in 2020-21 ()
- c) an explanation for variances between budget estimate and actual net cash flow.

	Project name	Department	Output(s) and portfolio(s)	Estimated net cash flow in 2020-21	Actual net cash flow in 2020-21	Variance explanation
1.						
2.						
3.						
4.						
5.						
	Other					
	Total net cash flow					

Question 32 (DTF only) Purchases of non-financial assets – General Government Sector (GGS)

Regarding the 'purchases of non-financial assets' by the GGS in 2020-21 (source: 2020-21 BP 4, pg. 31), please compare the initial budget estimate for each department to the actual value of 'purchases of non-financial assets' for each department, explaining any variances equal to or greater than ±10% or \$100 million (please fill all blank spaces) and then link it to the relevant output and portfolio. For variance greater than ±10% or \$100 million, please provide a breakdown of the non-financial asset purchased.

By department	Types of non-financial assets	Initial budget estimate 2020-21 \$ million	Actual 2020-21 \$ million	Variance (%)	Variance explanation	Relevant Output(s) and portfolio(s)
Department of Health and						
Human Services						
Department of Health						
Department of Families,						
Fairness and Housing						
Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions						
Department of Transport						
Department of Education and Training						
Department of Justice and Community Safety						
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning						
Court Services Victoria						
Department of Premier and Cabinet						
Department of Treasury and Finance						
Parliamentary Departments						

Question 33 (DTF only) Revenue initiatives

Regarding the revenue initiatives announced in the 2020-21 Budget, please provide an explanation for the variances equal to or greater than ±10% or \$100 million between budget estimates and the actual results.

Initiative	2020-21 budget estimate (\$ million)	2020-21 actual (\$ million)	Explanation for any variance ±10% or \$100 million

Question 34 (DTF only) Expenses by departments – General Government Sector (GGS)

Regarding expenses of the GGS in 2020-21 (source: 2020-21 BP 4, pg. 30), please compare the initial budget estimates (not the revised estimate) for each department to the actual expenses for each department, explaining any variances equal to or greater than ±10% or \$100 million (please fill all blank spaces) and then link it to the relevant output and portfolio.

By department	Initial budget estimate 2020-21 \$ million	Actual 2020-21 \$ million	Variance (%)	Variance explanation	Relevant output(s) and portfolio(s)
Department of Health and Human					
Services					
Department of Health					
Department of Families, Fairness and					
Housing					
Department of Jobs, Precinct and Regions					
Department of Transport					
Department of Education and Training					
Department of Justice and Community Safety					
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning					
Court Services Victoria					
Department of Premier and Cabinet					
Department of Treasury and Finance					
Parliamentary Departments					

Question 35 (DTF only) Economic variables

Please indicate the estimated and actual result for the following economic variables. For the estimate, please use the initial estimate used in preparing the 2020-21 budget papers. For any variance equal to or greater than ±0.5 percentage points, please provide an explanation for the variance. Please fill all blank spaces.

Economic variable	Budget estimate 2020-21	Actual 2020-21 result	Variance	Explanation for variances equal to or greater than ±0.5 percentage points
Real gross state product				
Labour force participation rate				
Unemployment rate – overall				
Unemployment rate – male				
Unemployment rate – female				
Underemployment rate				
Youth unemployment				
Youth underemployment				
Consumer price index				
Wage price index				
Population				
Household consumption				
Property prices				
Property volume				
Employee expenses				

Question 36	DTF only) COVID-19	pandemic response

a)	What fiscal rules did Victoria have in place in 2020-21 and were any suspended or modified due to the pandemic? If so, which ones?
b)	Some jurisdictions created fiscal space using provisions to reallocate spending across budget programs. To what extent did this occur in Victoria in 2020-21? Please provide some examples.
c)	Did DTF introduce additional monitoring and reporting requirements of departments in 2020-21 due to additional COVID-19 expenditure? If so, please provide details of the requirements.
d)	Will DTF produce a special appendix of all potential liabilities (on and off budget) for COVID-19 related measures?
e)	What have been the financial management implications of the declaration of the state of emergency and state of disaster during the COVID-19 pandemic?
f)	What risks associated with the emergency budgetary response have been identified by DTF and its insurers? How were these risks actively managed in 2020-21?

PAEC General Questionnaire | Monash Health | 47 52 of 55

Question 37 (all departments and entities) Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBAs)

Please list the Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBAs) concluded in 2020-21 that had an impact for the department/agency. For each EBA, please show the number of employees affected and the growth in employee expenses attributable to the EBA.

Enterprise Bargaining Agreement	Number of employees affected	Number of employees as a % of department/entity	Growth in employee expenses attributable to the EBA (\$ million)	Growth in employee expenses attributable to the EBA (\$ million) as a % of total employee expenses

Section K: Treasury Corporation of Victoria ONLY

Question 38 Dividends

a) Please explain the factors that have been involved in the negotiations with the Treasurer, in relation to the amount of dividends paid by the Treasurer Corporation of Victoria (TCV) in 2019-20 and 2020-21.

	Dividends paid in 2019-20	Dividends paid in 2020-21
Amount of dividends paid (\$ million)		
Factors that have been involved in the negotiations with the Treasurer to determine the amount of dividends paid.		

Question 39 Commodity risk management

a١	Please nrov	ide details of h	ow the COVID-19	pandemic impacted	on TCV's	Commodity	, Rick Management
αı	riease prov	iue uetalis oi ii	OW THE COVID-13	panuennic impacteu	011 1 C V S	Commoditi	/ NISK IVIAHABEHHEHL.

Question 40 Foreign exchange risk management

 a) Please provide details o 	f how the COVID-19 pandemic i	mpacted on TCV's Foreign Risk Management
---	-------------------------------	--

Question 41 Public Private Partnership (PPP)/alliance contracting projects

a)	Please indicate how many PPP/alliance contracting projects (and which ones) TCV provided 'project advisory services' for in 2020-21. For each		
	project, please also specify if the project is a newly confirmed engagement or if it was for a project that was already underway.		

b) Please indicate how many business cases TCV provided (and which clients these were for) as part of its 'project advisory services' in 2020-21. For each business case, also specify if the project forms part of the Department of Treasury and Finance's Gateway Review Process.

Business case provided by TCV	Client	Gateway Review Process – Y/N